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IN THE MATTER OF
KINNEY DRUGS, INC.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SEC. 5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket 9227. Complaint,* April 19, 1989—Decision, July 1, 1991

This consent order prohibits, among other things, a pharmaceutical firm from
organizing or entering into any agreement among pharmacy firms to withdraw
from or refuse to enter into a third-party payer prescription drug plan; for ten
years, from stating or communicating to any pharmacy firm the intent to enter
into or refuse to enter into any third-party payer prescription drug plan; and for
eight years, from providing comments or advice to any pharmacist or pharmacy
firm on the desirability or appropriateness of entering into or refusing to enter
into any third-party preseription drug plan.

Appearances

For the Commission: Karen G. Bokat and Michael D. McNeeley.

For the respondent: Robert J. Leader, Case & Leader, Gouveneur,
N.Y.

DEcisioN AND ORDER

The Commission having heretofore issued its complaint charging
the respondent Kinney Drugs, Inc. with a violation of Section 5 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, and the respondent
having been served with a copy of that complaint, together with a
notice of the contemplated relief; and

The respondent, its attorney, and counsel for the Commission
having thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order,
an admission by the respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth
in the complaint, a statement that the signing of said agreement is for
settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by
respondent that the law has been violated as alleged in such
complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission’s Rules; and

The Secretary of the Commission having thereafter withdrawn this

*Complaint previously published at 114 FTC 827 (1991).
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matter from adjudication in accordance with Section 3.25(c) of its
Rules; and

The Commission having considered the matter and having there-
upon accepted the executed consent agreement and placed such
agreement on the public record for a period of (60) days, now in
further conformity with the procedure prescribed in Section 3.25(f) of
its rules, the Commission hereby makes the following jurisdictional
findings and enters the following order:

1. Respondent Kinney Drugs, Inc. is a corporation organized,
existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of New York, with its office and principal place of business
located at 29 Main Street, in the City of Gouverneur, State of New
York.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondent, and the proceeding is
in the public interest.

ORDER
I.

For purposes of the order, the following definitions shall apply:

A. “Kinney” means Kinney Drugs, Inc., its directors, officers,
agents, employees, divisions, subsidiaries, successors and assigns;

B. “Third-party payer” means any person or entity that provides a
program or plan pursuant to which such a person or entity agrees to
pay for prescriptions dispensed by pharmacies to individuals described
in such plan or program as eligible for such coverage (‘“Covered
Persons”), and includes, but is not limited to, health insurance
companies; prepaid hospital, medical, or other health service plans,
such as Blue Cross and Blue Shield plans; health maintenance
organizations; preferred provider organizations; prescription service
administrative organizations; and health benefit programs for govern-
ment employees, retirees or dependents;

C. “Participation agreement” means any existing or proposed
agreement, oral or written, in which a third-party payer agrees to
reimburse a pharmacy for the dispensing of prescription drugs to
Covered Persons, and the pharmacy agrees to such payment from the
third-party payer for such preseriptions dispensed during the term of
the agreement;
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D. “Pharmacy firm” means any partnership, sole proprietorship or
corporation, including all of its subsidiaries, affiliates, divisions and
joint ventures, that owns, controls or operates one or more pharma-
cies, including the directors, officers, employees, and agents of such
partnership, sole proprietorship or corporation as well as the directors,
officers, employees, and agents of such partnership’s, sole proprietor-
ship’s or corporation’s subsidiaries, affiliates, divisions and joint
ventures, but excludes any partnership, sole proprietorship or corpora-
tion, including all of its subsidiaries, affiliates, divisions and joint
ventures, which own, are owned by, control or are under common
control with Kinney. The words “subsidiary”, “affiliate”, and “joint
venture” refer to any firm in which there is partial (10% or more) or
total ownership or control between corporations.

1L

It 1s ordered, That Kinney, directly, indirectly, or through any
corporate or other device, in or in connection with its activities in or
affecting commerce, as “commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act, shall forthwith cease and desist from:

A. Agreeing or combining, attempting to agree or combine, or
taking any action in furtherance of any agreement or combination,
advocating an agreement, or organizing or cooperating with any
pharmacy firm(s) to (1) boycott, refuse to enter into, withdraw from,
or not participate in, any participation agreement or (2) threaten to
boycott, threaten to refuse to enter into, threaten to withdraw from,
or threaten not to participate in, any participation agreement;

B. For a period of ten (10) years after the date this order becomes
final, stating or communicating in any way to any pharmacy firm the
intention or decision of Kinney with respect to entering into, refusing
to enter into, threatening to refuse to enter into, participating in,
threatening to withdraw from, or withdrawing from any existing or
proposed participation agreement into which Kinney and the other
pharmacy firm have entered, could enter or are considering entering;

C. For a period of eight (8) years after the date this order becomes
final, advising any pharmacy firm with respect to entering into,
refusing to enter into, participating in, or withdrawing from any
existing or proposed participation agreement into which Kinney and
the other pharmacy firm have entered, could enter or are considering
entering.
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Provided that, nothing in this order shall prevent Kinney from:

(1) Exercising rights permitted under the First Amendment to the
United States Constitution to petition any federal or state government
executive agency or legislative body concerning legislation, rules or
procedures, or to participate in any federal or state administrative or
judicial proceeding;

(2) Subecontracting, preparing joint bids, or otherwise jointly
undertaking with pharmacy firms to provide prescription drug
services under a participation agreement if requested to do so in
writing by the third-party payer; or

(8) Communicating to the public truthful, nondeceptive statements
concerning any existing or proposed participation agreement.

II1.

It is further ordered, That Kinney:

A. Provide a copy of this order within thirty (30) days after the date
this order becomes final to each officer, director, employee pharmacist
who is employed in New York state, and each employee whose
responsibilities include recommending or deciding whether to enter
into any participation agreement, and each employee who regularly
attends meetings on Kinney’s behalf that include representatives of
other pharmacies; and

B. For a period of five (5) years after the date this order becomes
final, provide each new director and each employee who enters a
position described in paragraph A a copy of the order within ten (10)
days of the date the employee or director assumes the new position.

Iv.

It is further ordered, That Kinney:

A. File a verified, written report with the Commission within ninety
(90) days after the date this order becomes final, and annually
thereafter for five (5) years on the anniversary of the date this order
becomes final, and at such other times as the Commission may, by
written notice to Kinney, require, setting forth in detail the manner
and form in which it has complied and is complying with this order;

B. For a period of five (5) years after the date this order becomes
final, maintain and make available to Commission staff for inspection
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and copying upon reasonable notice all documents generated by
Kinney or that come into Kinney’s possession, custody, or control
regardless of source, that embody, discuss or refer to the decision or
upon which Kinney relies in deciding whether to enter into any
participation agreement in which Kinney participates, has participat-
ed, or has considered participating; and

C. Notify the Commission at least thirty (30) days prior to any
proposed change in Kinney such as, assignment or sale resulting in
the emergence of a successor corporation or association, change of
name, change of address, dissolution, the creation, sale or dissolution
of a subsidiary, or any other change that may affect compliance with
this order.

Commissioner Azcuenaga dissenting.
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IN THE MATTER OF
JAMES E. KRAHULEC

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SEC. b OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket 9227. Complaint,* April 19, 1989—Decision, July 1, 1991

This consent order prohibits, among other things, Mr. Krahulec from organizing or
entering into any agreement with any pharmacy firms to boycott, withdraw from
or refuse to enter into a third-party payer prescription drug plan; for ten years,
from organizing, sponsoring, or attending a meeting of pharmacy firms at which
persons make any statements concerning the pharmacy firm’s intent to enter into
or refuse to enter into any third-party payer prescription drug plan; for ten years,
from communicating to any pharmacy firm, other than Mr. Krahulec’s employer,
any information concerning any pharmacy firm’s intention to enter into or refuse
to enter into any third-party payer prescription drug plan; and for eight years,
from providing comments or advice to any pharmacist or pharmacy firm on the
desirability or appropriateness of entering into or refusing to enter into any third-
party payer prescription drug plan.

Appearances

For the Commission: Karen G. Bokat and Michael D. McNeely.

For the respondent: William J. Guzick, Skadden, Arps, Slate,
Meagher & Flom, Washington, D.C.

DEciSION AND ORDER

The Commission having heretofore issued its complaint charging
the respondent James E. Krahulec with a violation of Section 5 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, and the respondent
having been served with a copy of that complaint, together with a
notice of the contemplated relief; and

The respondent, his attorney, and counsel for the Commission
having thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order,
an admission by the respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth
in the complaint, a statement that the signing of said agreement is for
settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by
respondent that the law has been violated as alleged in such

*Complaint previously published at 114 FTC 327 (1991).
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complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission’s Rules; and

The Secretary of the Commission having thereafter withdrawn this
matter from adjudication in accordance with Section 3.25(c) of its
Rules; and

The Commission having considered the matter and having there-
upon accepted the executed consent agreement and placed such
agreement on the public record for a period of (60) days, now in
further conformity with the procedure prescribed in Section 3.25(f) of
its rules, the Commission hereby makes the following jurisdictional
findings and enters the following order:

1. Respondent Krahulec is an individual employed by Rite Aid
Corporation in Rite Aid Corporation’s principal offices at Railroad
Ave. and Trindle Road, Shiremantown, Pennsylvania.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondent, and the proceeding is
in the public interest.

ORDER

L

For purposes of the order, the following definitions shall apply:

A. “Mr. Krahulec” means James E. Krahulee, his agents and
employees;

B. “Third-party payer” means any person or entity that provides a
program or plan pursuant to which such a person or entity agrees to
pay for prescriptions dispensed by pharmacies to individuals described
in such plan or program as eligible for such coverage (“Covered
Persons”), and includes, but is not limited to, health insurance
companies; prepaid hospital, medical, or other health service plans,
such as Blue Cross and Blue Shield plans; health maintenance
organizations; preferred provider organizations; prescription service
administrative organizations; and health benefit programs for govern-
ment employees, retirees or dependents;

C. “Participation agreement”’ means any existing or proposed
agreement, oral or written, in which a third-party payer agrees to
reimburse a pharmacy for the dispensing of prescription drugs to
Covered Persons, and the pharmacy agrees to accept such payment
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from the third-party payer for such prescriptions dispensed during the
term of the agreement;

D. “Pharmacy firm” means any partnership, sole proprietorship or
corporation, including all of its subsidiaries, affiliates, divisions and
joint ventures, that owns, controls or operates one or more pharma-
cies, including the directors, officers, employees, and agents of such
partnership, sole proprietorship or corporation as well as the directors,
officers, employees, and agents of such partnership’s, sole proprietor-
ship’s or corporation’s subsidiaries, affiliates, divisions and joint
ventures. The words ‘“‘subsidiary”, “affiliate”, and ‘joint venture”
refer to any firm in which there is partial (10% or more) or total
ownership or control between corporations.

1L

It is ordered, That Mr. Krahulee, directly, indirectly, or through any
device, in or in connection with his activities in or affecting commerce,
as “commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, shall forthwith cease and desist from:

A. Agreeing or combining, attempting to agree or combine, or
taking any action in furtherance of any agreement or combination,
advocating an agreement, or organizing or cooperating with any
pharmacy firm(s) to (1) boycott, refuse to enter into, withdraw from,
or not participate in, any participation agreement or (2) threaten to
boycott, threaten to refuse to enter into, threaten to withdraw from,
or threaten not to participate in, any participation agreement;

B. For a period of ten (10) years after the date this order becomes
final, organizing, sponsoring, facilitating, or attending a formal or
informal meeting of representatives of pharmacy firms that Mr.
Krahulec expects or reasonably should expect will facilitate communi-
cations, or continuing to conduct a formal or informal meeting of
representatives of pharmaecy firms at which two persons make any
statement, concerning one or more firms’ intentions or decisions with
respect to entering into, refusing to enter into, threatening to refuse
to enter into, participating in, threatening to withdraw from, or
withdrawing from any existing or proposed participation agreement;

C. For a period of ten (10) years after the date this order becomes
final, communicating in any way to or soliciting from any pharmacy
firm other than Mr. Krahulec’s employer any information concerning
any pharmacy firm’s intention or decision with respect to entering
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into, threatening to refuse to enter into, refusing to enter into,
participating in, threatening to withdraw from, or withdrawing from
any existing or proposed participation agreement; and

D. For a period of eight (8) years after the date this order becomes
final, advising any pharmacist not employed by Mr. Krahulec’s
employer or any pharmacy firm other than Mr. Krahulec’s employer
with respect to entering into, refusing to enter into, participating in,
or withdrawing from any existing or proposed participation agree-
ment into which Mr. Krahulee’s employer and the other pharmacy
firm have entered, could enter or are considering entering.

Provided that, nothing in this order shall prevent Mr. Krahulec
from:

(1) Exercising rights permitted under the First Amendment to the
United States Constitution to petition any federal or state government
executive agency or legislative body concerning legislation, rules or
procedures, or to participate in any federal or state administrative or
judicial proceeding; or

(2) Communicating to the public truthful, nondeceptive statements
concerning any existing or proposed participation agreement.

III.

It s further ordered, That Mr. Krahulec:

A. Shall file a verified, written report with the Commission within
ninety (90) days after the date this order becomes final, and annually
thereafter for five (5) years on the anniversary of the date this order
becomes final, and at such other times as the Commission may, by
written notice to Mr. Krahulec, require, setting forth in detail the
manner and form in which he has complied and is complying with this
order;

B. For a period of five (5) years after the date this order becomes
final, maintain and make available to Commission staff for inspection
and copying upon reasonable notice, records adequate to describe in
detail any action taken in connection with the activities covered by
Part II of the order, including, but not limited to, all documents
generated by Mr. Krahulec or that come into his possession, custody,
or control regardless of source, that embody, discuss or refer to the
terms or conditions of any participation agreement; and

C. Notify the Commission within thirty (30) days of any change in
Mr. Krahulec’s employer or of any other change that may affect
compliance with the order.

Commissioner Azcuenaga dissenting.
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IN THE MATTER OF
ZIPATONE, INC., ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SEC. 5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-8336. Complaint, July 9, 1991—Decision, July 9, 1991

This consent order prohibits, among other things, a Hillside, Ill., based manufacturer
of artists’ materials from representing that any product containing a Class 1
ozone-depleting substance will not damage the environment, and from making
any unsubstantiated claims that any product containing an ozone-depleting
substance offers environmental benefits.

Appearances

For the Commission: Michael Dershowitz.

For the respondents: Benjamin E. Beale, Jr., officer of Zipatone,
Inc., Hillside, IL.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that
Zipatone, Inc., a corporation, and Benjamin E. Beale Jr., individually
and as an officer of said corporation, hereinafter sometimes referred
to as respondents, have violated the provisions of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, and it appearing to the Commission that a
proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public interest,
alleges:

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent Zipatone, Inc. is an Illinois corporation,
with its office and prineipal place of business located at 150 Fencl
Lane, Hillside, Illinois.

Respondent Benjamin E. Beale Jr. is an officer of the corporate
respondent named herein. He formulates, directs, and controls the
acts and practices of the corporate respondent. His address is the
same as that of the corporation.

PAR. 2. Respondents have advertised, offered for sale, sold and
distributed certain spray products to the public, including Zipatone
Spray Cement, a product which contains the chemical 1,1,1
Trichloroethane.
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Par. 3. The acts and practices of respondents alleged in this
complaint have been in or affecting commerce.

PAR. 4. Respondents have disseminated or have caused to be
disseminated advertisements for Zipatone Spray Cement. Typical
examples of respondents’ advertisements and product labeling, but
not necessarily all inclusive thereof, are attached hereto as Exhibits A
and B.

The aforesaid advertising (Exhibit A) includes the following
statement:

“Zipatone’s time saving spray products use only ecologically safe propellants. You get
the job done quickly without damaging the environment.”

The aforesaid product labeling (Exhibit B) includes the following
statement:

ECOLOGICALLY-SAFE PROPELLANT

PaR. 5. Through the use of statements referred to in paragraph four
in its advertising and product labeling, respondents have represented
directly or by implication that:

1. Zipatone Spray Cement contains no ingredients that are
damaging to the environment.

2. Use of Zipatone Spray Cement will not have a detrimental effect
on the earth’s ecology.

PAR. 6. In truth and in fact, Zipatone Spray Cement contains a
harmful ozone depleting chemical, 1,1,1 - Trichloroethane, which will
cause damage to the environment and the earth’s ecology by
contributing to the depletion of the earth’s ozone layer. Therefore, the
representations set forth in paragraph five were, and are, false and
misleading.

PAR. 7. Through the statements and representations referred to in
paragraphs four and five, respondents have represented, directly or by
implication, that at the time they made such representations,
respondents possessed and relied upon a reasonable basis for such
representations.

PaRr. 8. In truth and in fact, at the time respondents made such
representations, respondents did not possess and rely upon a
reasonable basis for such representations. Therefore, the representa-
tions set forth in paragraph seven were, and are, false and misleading.
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PAR. 9. The acts and practices of respondents as alleged in this
complaint constitute unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or
affecting commerce in violation of Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade
Commission Act.
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EXHIBIT B

Zipatone® Spray Cement

THE DENSE SPRAY ADHESIVE WITH A QUICK, STRONG
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DEcIsioN AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation of
certain acts and practices of respondents Zipatone, Inc., a corporation,
and Benjamin E. Beale, Jr., individually and as an officer of said
corporation, and the respondents having been furnished thereafter
with a copy of a draft of complaint which the Bureau of Consumer
Protection proposed to present to the Commission for its consideration
and which, if issued by the Commission, would charge respondents
with violation of the Federal Trade Commission Act; and

The respondents and counsel for the Commission having thereafter
executed an agreement containing a consent order, an admission by
the respondents of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the aforesaid
draft complaint, a statement that the signing of said agreement is for
settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by
respondents that the law has been violated as alleged in such
complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission’s Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having determined that it had reason to believe that the respondents
have violated the said Act, and that complaint should issue stating its
charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the executed
consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public record
for a period of sixty (60) days, now in further conformity with the
procedure prescribed in Section 2.34 of its Rules, the Commission
hereby makes the following jurisdictional findings and enters the
following order:

1. Respondent Zipatone, Inc. is a corporation organized, existing
and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Illinois. Zipatone, Inc. has its offices and principal place of business at
150 Fencl Lane, Hillside, Illinois.

2. Respondent Benjamin E. Beale, Jr. is an officer of said
corporation. He formulates directs, and controls the acts and practices
of said corporation, and his address is the same as that of Zipatone,
Inc.

3. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondents and the proceeding is
in the public interest.
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ORDER

DEFINITIONS
For purposes of the order, the following definitions shall apply:

“Competent and reliable scientific evidence’” means such tests,
analyses, research, studies, or other scientific evidence conducted and
evaluated in an objective manner by persons qualified to do so, using
procedures generally accepted by others in the profession to yield
accurate and reliable results.

“Class I ozone depleting substance” means a substance that harms
the environment by destroying ozone in the upper atmosphere and is
listed as such in Title 6 of the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990,
Pub. L. No. 101-549, and any other substance which may in the future
be added to the list pursuant to Title 6 of the Act. Class I substances
currently include chlorofluorocarbons, halons, carbon tetrachloride
and 1,1,1 - Trichloroethane.

“Class II ozone depleting substance” means a substance that harms
the environment by destroying ozone in the upper atmosphere and is
listed as such in Title 6 of the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990,
Pub. L. No. 101-549, and any other substance which may in the future
be added to the list pursuant to Title 6 of the Act. Class II substances
currently include hydrochlorofluorocarbons.

L.

It is ordered, That respondents Zipatone, Inc. (hereinafter ““Zipa-
tone”), a corporation, its successors and assigns, and its officers, and
Benjamin E. Beale, Jr., individually as an officer of said corporation,
and respondents’ representatives, agents, and employees, directly or
through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, in
connection with the advertising, labeling, offering for sale, sale, or
distribution of any product, in or affecting commerce, as “‘commerce”
is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, do forthwith cease
and desist from representing, directly or by implication, by words,
depictions, or symbols that any product containing any Class I ozone
depleting substance, will not damage the environment, or is ecologi-
cally safe, or through the use of any substantially similar term or
expression, including but not limited to “ozone friendly” or “ozone
safe,” that any such product will not damage the environment, or that
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any such product is ecologically safe, or that any such product will not
deplete, destroy, or otherwise adversely affect ozone in the upper
atmosphere.

1L

1t is further ordered, That respondents Zipatone, a corporation, its
successors and assigns, and its officers, and Benjamin E. Beale, Jr.,
individually as an officer of said corporation, and respondents’
representatives, agents, and employees, directly or through any
corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, in connection with
the advertising, labeling, offering for sale, sale, or distribution of any
product, in or affecting commerce, as “commerce” is defined in the
Federal Trade Commission Act, do forthwith cease and desist from
representing, directly or by implication, by words, depictions or
symbols, that any product containing any Class I ozone depleting
substance or any Class II ozone depleting substance, or any other
ozone depleting substance, offers any environmental benefits, includ-
ing but not limited to any environmental benefit claims concerning the
ecology, atmosphere, upper atmosphere, stratosphere or the ozone
layer, unless at the time of making such representation, respondents
possess and rely upon a reasonable basis, consisting of competent and
reliable scientific evidence that substantiates such representation.

III.

It is further ordered, That for three years from the date that the
representations to which they pertain are last disseminated, respon-
dents shall maintain and upon request make available to the Federal
Trade Commission for inspection and copying:

1. All materials that respondents relied upon in disseminating any
representation covered by this order.

2. All tests, reports, studies or surveys in respondents’ possession or
control or of which they have knowledge that contradict any
representation of respondents covered by this order.

Iv.

1t 1s further ordered, That respondents shall distribute a copy of
this order to each of its operating divisions and to each of its officers,
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agents, representatives, or employees engaged in the preparation and
placement of advertisements, promotional materials, product labels or
other such sales materials covered by this order.

V.

It is further ordered, That respondents shall notify the Commission
at least thirty (80) days prior to any proposed change in the
corporation such as a dissolution, assignment, or sale resulting in the
emergence of a successor corporation, the creation or dissolution of
subsidiaries, or any other change in the corporation which may affect
compliance obligations under this order.

VI

It is further ordered, That the individual respondent named herein
shall promptly notify the Commission in the event of the discontin-
uance of his present business or employment and of each affiliation
with a new business or employment. In addition, for a period of five
(5) years from the date of service of this order, the respondent shall
promptly notify the Commission of each affiliation with a new
business or employment whose activities include the sale, distribution
and/or manufacturing of any cleaning or adhesive products or of his
affiliation with a new business or employment in which his own duties
and responsibilities involve the sale, distribution and/or manufactur-
ing of any cleaning or adhesive products. Such notice shall include the
respondent’s new business address and a statement of the nature of
the business or employment in which the respondent is newly engaged
as well as a description of respondent’s duties and responsibilities in
connection with the business or employment. The expiration of the
notice provision of this paragraph shall not affect any other obligation
arising under this order.

VII

It 1s further ordered, That respondents shall, within sixty (60) days
after service of this order upon them, and at such other times as the
Commission may require, file with the Commission a report, in
writing, setting forth in detail the manner and form in which they
have complied with this order.
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IN THE MATTER OF

ALLEGHANY CORPORATION

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SEC. 7 OF THE CLAYTON ACT AND SEC. 5 OF THE
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3335. Complaint, July 11, 1991—Decision, July 11, 1991

This consent order requires, among other things, Alleghany Corporation to divest,
within twelve months of this order, all rights and interest in either its own title
plants and back plants or those of Westwood Equities Corporation, to a
Commission-approved acquirer.

Appearances

For the Commission: Ann B. Malester.

For the respondent: John C. Christie, Jr., Bell, Boyd & Lloyd,
Washington, D.C.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the Federal
Trade Commission (“Commission”), having reason to believe that
respondent Alleghany Corporation (‘““Alleghany”’), a corporation sub-
ject to the jurisdiction of the Commission, through one of its
subsidiaries, has entered into an agreement that constitutes a
violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended, (15 U.S.C. 45); and that such acquisition, if consummated,
would constitute a violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as
amended, (15 U.S.C. 18); and it appearing to the Commission that a
proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public interest,
hereby issues its complaint, pursuant to Section 11 of the Clayton Act
(15 U.S.C. 21) and Section 5(b) of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
(15 U.S.C. 45(b)), stating its charges as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS

1. For the purposes of this complaint, the following definitions
apply:
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a. “Alleghany” means Alleghany Corporation, its directors, offi-
cers, employees and representatives, its successors and assigns, and
its subsidiaries, divisions, groups and affiliates controlled by Allegha-
ny, their respective directors, officers, employees and representatives,
and their respective successors and assigns.

b. “Title plant”’ means a privately owned set of records regarding
the ownership of and interests in real property that is maintained by
obtaining information from the public records on a daily or regular
basis, and is indexed, posted or otherwise organized to update data
regarding specific land parcels.

¢. “Back plant” means a privately owned set of records regarding
the ownership of and interests in real property that is no longer being
updated on a daily or regular basis.

d. “Title plant information” means information contained in or
obtained from a title plant.

e. “Back plant information” means information contained in or
obtained from a back plant.

II. ALLEGHANY CORPORATION

2. Alleghany is a corporation organized, existing and doing business
under and by virtue of the laws of Delaware, with its principle office
at Park Avenue Plaza, New York, New York.

3. Alleghany is the sole owner of Chicago Title & Trust Company,
which is the sole owner of Chicago Title Insurance Company
(““Chicago Title”).

4. Alleghany is, and at all times relevant herein has been, a
corporation whose business is in or affecting commerce as ‘“‘com-
merce” is defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
as amended, (15 U.S.C. 44).

III. THE ACQUISITION

5. On November 29, 1990, Chicago Title & Trust Company and
Westwood Equities Corporation (“WEC”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of New TC Holding Corporation, entered into an Acquisition Agree-
ment by which Alleghany agreed to purchase most of the title
insurance-related assets of WEC, including Ticor Title Insurance
Company of California.

IV. TRADE AND COMMERCE

6. The relevant sections of the country are Imperial County,
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California; Orange County, California; Riverside County, California;
San Bernardino County, California; San Luis Obispo County, Califor-
nia; Santa Barbara County, California; Tulare County, California;
Cook County, Illinois; Du Page County, Illinois; Lake County, Illinois;
Will County, Illinois; Johnson County, Indiana; Lake County, Indiana;
Marion County, Indiana; Porter County, Indiana; Davidson County,
Tennessee; Benton County, Washington; and Franklin County, Wash-
ington.

7. The relevant lines of commerce are the production and/or sale of
title plant information and the production and/or sale of back plant
information.

8. There are no reasonable substitutes for access to title plant
information in Imperial County, California; Du Page County, Illinois;
Lake County, Illinois; Will County, Illinois; Johnson County, Indiana;
Lake County, Indiana; Porter County, Indiana; Benton County,
Washington; and Franklin County, Washington.

9. There are no reasonable substitutes for access to back plant
information in Orange County, California; Riverside County, Califor-
nia; San Bernardino County, California; San Luis Obispo County,
California; Santa Barbara County, California; Tulare County, Califor-
nia; Cook County, Illinois; Marion County, Indiana; and Davidson
County, Tennessee.

10. There are substantial barriers to entry into the creation of title
plants in Imperial County, California; Du Page County, Illinois; Lake
County, Illinois; Will County, Illinois; Johnson County, Indiana; Lake
County, Indiana; Porter County, Indiana; Benton County, Washing-
ton; and Franklin County, Washington.

11. There are substantial barriers to entry into the creation of back
plants in Orange County, California; Riverside County, California; San
Bernardino County, California; San Luis Obispo County, California;
Santa Barbara County, California; Tulare County, California; Cook
County, Illinois; Marion County, Indiana; and Davidson County,
Tennessee.

12. Through their respective ownership interests, Chicago Title and
WEC are significant competitors in the production and/or sale of title
plant information in Imperial County, California; Du Page County,
Illinois; Lake County, Illinois; Will County, Illinois; Johnson County,
Indiana; Lake County, Indiana; Porter County, Indiana; Benton
County, Washington; and Franklin County, Washington. The market
for title plant information in each of these counties is highly
concentrated.
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13. Through their respective ownership interests, Chicago Title and
WEC are significant competitors in the production and/or sale of back
plant information in Orange County, California; Riverside County,
California; San Bernardino County, California; San Luis Obispo
County, California; Santa Barbara County, California; Tulare County,
California; Cook County, Illinois; Marion County, Indiana; and
Davidson County, Tennessee. The market for back plant information
in each of these counties is highly concentrated.

V. EFFECTS

14. The effects of the acquisition may be substantially to lessen
competition or tend to create a monopoly in the relevant lines of
commerce in the following ways, among others:

(a) It will eliminate substantial actual competition between Chicago
Title and WEC in the production and/or sale of title plant information
in Imperial County, California; Du Page County, Illinois; Lake County,
Illinois; Will County, Illinois; Johnson County, Indiana; Lake County,
Indiana; Porter County, Indiana; Benton County, Washington; and
Franklin County, Washington;,

(b) It will eliminate substantial actual competition between Chicago
Title and WEC in the production and/or sale of back plant information
in Orange County, California; Riverside County, California; San
Bernardino County, California; San Luis Obispo County, California;
Santa Barbara County, California; Tulare County, California; Cook
County, Illinois; Marion County, Indiana; and Davidson County,
Tennessee; and

(e) It will deny customers of title plant information or back plant
information the benefits of free and open competition in Imperial
County, California; Orange County, California; Riverside County,
California; San Bernardino County, California; San Luis Obispo
County, California; Santa Barbara County, California; Tulare County,
California; Cook County, Illinois; Du Page County, Illinois; Lake
County, Illinois; Will County, Illinois; Johnson County, Indiana; Lake
County, Indiana; Marion County, Indiana; Porter County, Indiana;
Davidson County, Tennessee; Benton County, Washington; and
Franklin County, Washington.

VI. VIOLATIONS CHARGED

15. The acquisition agreement described in paragraph 5 constitutes
a violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
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amended, (15 U.S.C. 45), and the proposed acquisition, if consummat-
ed, would constitute a violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as
amended, (15 U.S.C. 18) and Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Aect, as amended, (15 U.S.C. 45).

DEcisioN aAND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation of
- certain acts and practices of the respondent named in the caption
hereof relating to the acquisition of certain stock or voting securities
of Westwood Equities Corporation, and respondent having been
furnished thereafter with a copy of a draft of complaint which the
Bureau of Competition proposed to present to the Commission for its
consideration and which, if issued by the Commission, would charge
respondent with violation of the Federal Trade Commission Act and
the Clayton Act; and
The respondent, its attorney, and counsel for the Commission
having thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order,
an admission by the respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth
in the aforesaid draft of complaint, a statement that the signing of
said agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not constitute
an admission by respondent that the law has been violated as alleged
in such complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission’s Rules; and
The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having determined that it had reason to believe that the respondent
has violated the said Acts, and that a complaint should issue stating
its charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the
executed consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public
record for a period of sixty (60) days, and having duly considered the
comment filed thereafter by an interested person pursuant to Section
2.34 of its Rules, now in further conformity with the procedure
prescribed in Section 2.34 of its Rules, the Commission hereby issues
its complaint, makes the following jurisdictional findings and enters
the following order:

1. Alleghany Corporation is a corporation organized, existing and
doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Delaware, with its principal office at Park Avenue Plaza, New York,
New York.

2. Chicago Title and Trust Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of
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Alleghany, is a corporation organized, existing and doing business
under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois, with its
principal office at 111 West Washington Street, Chicago, Illinois.

3. Westwood Equities Corporation, (“Westwood”), a subsidiary of
New TC Holding Corporation, is a corporation organized, existing and
doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
California, with its principal office at 6300 Wilshire Boulevard, Los
Angeles, California.

4. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondent, and the proceeding is
in the public interest.

ORDER
1.

It is hereby ordered, That as used in this order the following
definitions shall apply:

A. “Alleghany” means Alleghany Corporation, its directors, offi-
cers, employees and representatives, its successors and assigns, and
its subsidiaries, divisions, groups and affiliates controlled by Allegha-
ny, their respective directors, officers, employees and representatives,
and their respective successors and assigns.

B. “Chicago Title and Trust” means Chicago Title and Trust
Company, its directors, officers, employees and representatives, its
successors and assigns, and its subsidiaries, divisions, groups and
affiliates controlled by Chicago Title and Trust, their respective
directors, officers, employees and representatives, and their respective
successors and assigns.

C. “New TC” means New TC Holding Corporation, its directors,
officers, employees and representatives, its successors and assigns,
and its subsidiaries, divisions, groups and affiliates controlled by New
TC, their respective directors, officers, employees and representatives,
and their respective successors and assigns.

D. “Title plant” means a privately owned set of records regarding
the ownership of and interests in real property that is maintained by
obtaining information from the public records on a daily or regular
basis, and is indexed, posted or otherwise organized to update data
regarding specific land parcels.

E. “Back plant” means a privately owned set of records regarding
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the ownership of and interests in real property that is no longer being
updated on a daily or regular basis.

F. “Remaining Properties” means all of the rights, title and
interest in the properties required to be divested in paragraphs IIA
and IIB that have not yet been divested by Alleghany.

II.

It 1s further ordered, That within twelve months from the date this
order becomes final Alleghany shall divest or shall cause to be
divested, absolutely and in good faith, all of its rights, title and
interest in the properties described in paragraphs ITA and IIB.
Divestiture shall be made only to a buyer or buyers that receive the
prior approval of the Commission, and only in a manner that receives
the prior approval of the Commission. The purpose of the divestiture is
to ensure the continuation of the assets as ongoing, viable title plants
and back plants engaged in the production and/or sale of title plant
information, and to remedy the lessening of competition resulting
from the acquisition as alleged in the Commission’s complaint in this
matter.

A. For each of the following counties, at the option of Alleghany,
either New TC’s title plant or Alleghany’s title plant serving such
county: Imperial County, California; Du Page County, Illinois; Lake
County, Illinois; Will County, Illinois; Johnson County, Indiana; Lake
County, Indiana; Porter County, Indiana; Benton County, Washing-
ton; and Franklin County, Washington. All user or access agreements
pertaining to each divested title plant shall also be divested. At the
buyer’s option at the time of purchase, and at a commercially
reasonable price, Alleghany shall continue to provide computer and
other services provided for each divested plant by either New TC or
Alleghany, for a period of up to three years from the date such title
plant is divested and shall assist the buyer in transferring the
computer and other services to any other provider of such services.

B. For each of the following counties, at the option of Alleghany,
either New TC’s back plant or Alleghany’s back plant serving such
county: Orange County, California; Riverside County, California; San
Bernardino County, California; San Luis Obispo County, California;
Santa Barbara County, California; Tulare County, California; Cook
County, Illinois; Marion County, Indiana; and Davidson County,
Tennessee. All user or access agreements pertaining to each divested
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back plant shall also be divested. At the buyer’s option at the time of
purchase, and at a commercially reasonable price, Alleghany shall
continue to provide services provided for each divested back plant by
either New TC or Alleghany, for a period of up to three years from the
date such back plant is divested and shall assist the buyer in
transferring the services to any other provider of such services.

II1.

It is further ordered, That:

A. If Alleghany has not divested all of its rights, title and interest in
the properties required to be divested in paragraphs IIA and IIB
within the twelve month period, Alleghany shall consent to the
appointment by the Commission of a trustee to divest all of the
Remaining Properties. In the event the Commission or the Attorney
General brings an action pursuant to Section 5(1) of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 45 (1), or any other statute enforced by the
Commission, Alleghany shall consent to the appointment of a trustee
in such action. Neither the appointment of a trustee nor a decision not
to appoint a trustee under this paragraph shall preclude the
Commission or the Attorney General from seeking civil penalties or
any other relief available to it, including a court-appointed trustee,
pursuant to Section 5(1) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, or any
other statute enforced by the Commission, for any failure by
Alleghany to comply with this order.

B. If a trustee is appointed by the Commission or a court pursuant
to paragraph IIIA of the order, Alleghany shall consent to the
following terms and conditions regarding the trustee’s powers,
authorities, duties and responsibilities:

1. The Commission shall select the trustee, subject to Alleghany’s
consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. The
trustee shall be a person with experience and expertise in acquisitions
and divestitures.

2. Subject to the prior approval of the Commission, the trustee shall
have the exclusive power and authority to divest the Remaining
Properties.

3. The trustee shall have twelve months from the date of
appointment to accomplish the divestiture of the Remaining Proper-
ties.
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4. If at the end of the trustee’s twelve month period the trustee has
submitted a plan of divestiture or believes that divestiture can be
achieved within a reasonable time, the divestiture period may be
extended by the Commission or by the court for a court-appointed
trustee.

5. The trustee shall have full and complete access to the personnel,
books, records, and facilities relating to the Remaining Properties, or
any other information, as the trustee may reasonably request.
Alleghany shall develop such financial or other information relevant to
the Remaining Properties as the trustee may reasonably request.
Alleghany shall cooperate with the trustee and shall take no action to
interfere with or impede the trustee’s accomplishment of the
divestitures. Any delays in divestiture caused by Alleghany shall
extend the time for divestiture under this paragraph in an amount
equal to the delay, as determined by the Commission or by the court
for a court-appointed trustee.

6. Subject to Alleghany’s absolute and unconditional obligation to
divest at no minimum price and the purposes of the divestitures as
stated in paragraph II of this order, the trustee shall use his or her
best efforts to negotiate the most favorable price and terms available
with each acquiring entity for the divestiture of the Remaining
Properties. The divestitures shall be made in the manner set out in
paragraph II; provided, however, that if the trustee receives bona fide
offers from more than one acquiring entity or entities, and if the
Commission determines to approve more than one such acquiring
entity, the trustee shall divest to the acquiring entity or entities
selected by Alleghany from among those approved by the Commis-
sion.

7. The trustee shall serve, without bond or other security, at the cost
and expense of Alleghany on such reasonable and customary terms
and conditions as the Commission or a court may set. The trustee shall
have authority to employ, at the cost and expense of Alleghany, such
consultants, accountants, attorneys, investment bankers, business
brokers, appraisers, and other representatives and assistants as are
reasonably necessary to carry out the trustee’s duties and responsibili-
ties. The trustee shall account for all monies derived from the
divestitures and all expenses incurred. After approval by the Commis-
sion and, in the case of a court-appointed trustee, by the court, of the
account of the trustee, including fees for his or her services, all
remaining monies shall be paid at the direction of Alleghany and the
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trustee’s power shall be terminated. The trustee’s compensation shall
be based at least in significant part on a commission arrangement
(percentage of price) that is contingent on the trustee divesting the
Remaining Properties.

8. Alleghany shall indemnify the trustee and hold the trustee
harmless against any losses, claims, damages, or liabilities arising in
any manner out of, or in connection with, the trustee’s duties under
this order, except for cases of misfeasance, willful or wanton acts, or
bad faith.

9. Within thirty days after appointment of the trustee, Alleghany
shall, subject to the prior approval of the Commission and, in the case
of a court-appointed trustee, of the court, and consistent with
provisions of this order, execute a trust agreement that transfers to
the trustee all rights and powers necessary to permit the trustee to
effect the divestitures required by this order.

10. If the trustee ceases to act or fails to act diligently, the
Commission may, on its own or by the request of Alleghany, appoint a
substitute trustee in the same manner as provided in paragraph IIIA
of this order.

11. The Commission and, in the case of a court-appointed trustee,
the court may on its own initiative or at the request of the trustee
issue such additional orders or directions as may be necessary or
appropriate to accomplish the divestitures required by this order.

12. The trustee shall have no obligation or authority to operate or
maintain the Remaining Properties.

18. The trustee shall report in writing to Alleghany and to the
Commission every sixty days concerning the trustee’s efforts to
accomplish the divestitures.

Iv.

It is further ordered, That Alleghany shall not cause or permit the
wasting or deterioration of the assets and operations to be divested in
accordance with paragraphs IIA and IIB of this order in any manner
that impairs the marketability of such assets and operations or
impairs in any manner the viability of the assets and operations as
going concerns engaged in the production and/or sale of title plant or
back plant information. In this regard:

A. Alleghany shall maintain the title plants and back plants listed in
paragraphs ITA and IIB to the extent and in the manner maintained
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by New TC and Alleghany prior to this acquisition, including but not
limited to updating the records contained in the title plants on a daily
or regular basis such that the title plants are as current as possible at
all times.

B. Alleghany shall maintain in good faith all contracts for access to
New TC’s title plants and back plants and to Alleghany’s title plants
and back plants listed in paragraphs IIA and IIB subject to the terms,
conditions and stipulations of those contracts, and will refrain from
taking any action toward terminating those contracts other than that
which would be commercially reasonable to New TC and Alleghany
under the terms of those agreements.

C. For each county listed in paragraph IIA, Alleghany shall, at the
option of the accessors, automatically continue to maintain in good
faith on identical terms, conditions and stipulations all contracts for
access to New TC’s title plant and all contracts for access to
Alleghany’s title plant in such county that expire by their terms prior
to divestiture of either New TC’s or Alleghany’s title plant for a period
lasting until the closing date upon which such divestiture is completed,
at which time Alleghany’s obligations under such contracts shall
cease.

D. For each county listed in paragraph IIB, Alleghany shall, at the
option of the acecessors, automatically continue to maintain in good
faith on identical terms, conditions and stipulations all contracts for
access to New TC’s back plant and all contracts for access to
Alleghany’s back plant in such county that expire by their terms prior
to divestiture of either New TC’s or Alleghany’s back plant for a
period lasting until the closing date upon which such divestiture is
completed, at which time Alleghany’s obligations under such contracts
shall cease.

V.

It is further ordered, That for a period of ten years from the date
this order becomes final, Alleghany shall not acquire, directly or
indirectly, any stock, share capital, equity interest, or assets in First
American Title Insurance Company, Lawyers Title Insurance Corpo-
ration, Stewart Title Guaranty Company, Commonwealth Land Title
Insurance Company, Title Insurance Company of Minnesota, TRW,
Inc. or any of their successors or assigns, or in any concern, corporate
or non-corporate, that has any direct or indirect ownership interest in
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a title plant that services any county listed in paragraph IIA or in a
back plant that services any county listed in paragraph IIB, or acquire
from any concern, corporate or non-corporate, any assets (other than
in the ordinary course of business) of, or ownership interest in, an
existing title plant that services any county listed in paragraph IIA or
a back plant that services any county listed in paragraph IIB, without
the prior approval of the Federal Trade Commission.

VI

It is further ordered, That for a period of ten years from the date
this order becomes final, Alleghany shall not, directly or indirectly,
acquire any stock, share capital, or equity interest in any concern,
corporate or non-corporate, that in turn has any direct or indirect
ownership interest in a title plant or back plant servicing any
geographic area for which Alleghany at that time has any direct or
indirect ownership interest in a title plant or back plant servicing the
same area, or acquire from any concern, corporate or non-corporate,
any assets (other than in the ordinary course of business) of, or
ownership interest in, any existing title plant or back plant servicing
any geographic area for which Alleghany at that time has any direct
or indirect ownership interest in a title plant or back plant servicing
the same area, without providing advance written notification to the
Federal Trade Commission. Said notification shall be given on the
Notification and Report Form set forth in the Appendix to Part 803 of
Title 16 of the Code of Federal Regulations as amended (hereinafter
referred to as “the Notification”), except that for purposes of the
Notification, Chicago Title and Trust, with the addition of any other
subsidiary, division, group and affiliate of Alleghany engaged in, or
having an interest in any other entity engaged in, the production and
sale of title plant information or back plant information, shall be
considered the ultimate parent entity as that term is defined in 16
CFR 801.1(a)(3). Alleghany shall provide to the Federal Trade
Commission, at least thirty days prior to acquiring any such interest
(hereinafter referred to as the “first waiting period”), both the
Notification and supplemental information either in Alleghany’s
possession or reasonably available to Alleghany. Such supplemental
information shall include a copy of the proposed acquisition agree-
ment; the names of the principal representatives of Alleghany and of
the firm Alleghany desires to acquire who negotiated the acquisition
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agreement; any management or strategic plans discussing the
proposed acquisition; and all documents relating to competition for the
provision of title plant or back plant services in that particular county.
If, within the first waiting period, representatives of the Federal
Trade Commission make a written request for additional information,
Alleghany shall not consummate the acquisition until twenty days
after submitting such additional information. Early termination of the
waiting periods in this paragraph may be requested and, where
appropriate, granted in the same manner as is applicable under the
requirements and provisions of the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust
Improvements Act of 1976 (15 U.S.C. 18A).

VIL

It 1s further ordered, That acquisitions resulting in an interest of
not more than 3% of the outstanding voting securities of publicly
traded companies, solely for the purpose of investment, are not subject
to paragraphs V and VI of this order; acquisitions of voting securities
of a publicly traded company shall not be subject to paragraphs V and
VI of this order solely by reason of the ownership, directly or
indirectly, by such publicly traded company of less than 5% of the
outstanding voting securities of one of the companies named in
paragraph V.

VIII.

It is further ordered, That:

A. Within sixty days after the order becomes final, and every sixty
days thereafter until Alleghany has fully complied with paragraphs II,
II and IV of this order, Alleghany shall file with the Commission a
verified written report setting forth in detail the manner and form in
which it intends to comply, is complying, or has complied with this
order. Such compliance reports shall include, in addition to any other
information that the staff of the Federal Trade Commission may
reasonably request, a full description of all contacts and negotiations
with potential acquirers of the title plants and back plants to be
divested under this order, the identity and address of all such potential
acquirers, copies of all written communications to and from such
potential acquirers, and all internal memoranda, reports and recom-
mendations concerning divestiture.
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B. On or before September 21, 1991, and annually for the next ten
years, Alleghany shall submit to the Commission a verified written
report setting forth in detail the manner and form in which it intends
to comply, is complying, or has complied with this order.

IX.

It is further ordered, That, for the purposes of determining or
securing compliance with this order, and subject to any legally
recognized privilege, upon written request and on reasonable notice to
Alleghany made to its principal office, Alleghany shall permit any duly
authorized representatives of the Federal Trade Commission:

A. Access, during office hours and in the presence of counsel, to
inspect and copy all books, ledgers, accounts, correspondence,
memoranda and other records and documents in the possession or
under the control of Alleghany relating to any matters contained in
this order; and

B. Upon five days notice to Alleghany and without restraint or
interference from Alleghany, to interview officers or employees of
Alleghany, who may have counsel present, regarding such matters.

X.

It is further ordered, That Alleghany shall notify the Commission at
least thirty days prior to any proposed change in Alleghany such as
dissolution, assignment or sale resulting in the emergence of a
successor corporation, the creation, dissolution or sale of subsidiaries
or any other change in Alleghany that may affect compliance
obligations arising out of this order.
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IN THE MATTER OF
TELELINE, INC.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SEC. 5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3337. Complaint, July 24, 1991—Decision, July 24, 1991

This consent order prohibits, among other things, a California corporation, that
markets ‘“900” number information services to children, from making misrepre-
sentations regarding free gifts or the number of calls required to receive a
premium; requires a clear statement, or preamble, at the beginning of each
children’s message giving the child a chance to hang up without charge; and
requires the company to provide a means for parents to prevent, or not be
charged for, unauthorized calls by their children.

Appearances

For the Commission: Toby M. Levin and Joel Winston.

For the respondent: Stephen Durchslag, Winston & Strawn,
Chicago, IL.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that
Teleline, Inc., a corporation, has violated the provisions of the Federal
Trade Commission Act, and it appearing to the Commission that a
proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public interest,
alleges:

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent Teleline, Inc. is a California corporation
with its office and principal place of business located at 9777 Wilshire
Boulevard, Suite 918, Beverly Hills, California.

PAR. 2. Respondent has advertised, offered for sale and has sold
information services to consumers, including children. Accessed by the
telephone through a “900” number exchange, respondent’s informa-
tion services for children have consisted of recorded stories or games
featuring animated or fictional characters (such as Freddy Pumpkin
and the Easter Bunny) along with recorded promotional messages.
Advertisements designed to induce consumers to purchase these
services have been broadcast on television across state lines.
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PAR. 3. As alleged in this complaint, the acts and practices of the
respondent have been in or affecting commerce, as “commerce”, is
defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

PAR. 4. Respondent has disseminated, or has caused to be
disseminated, advertisements and telephone messages for various
information services for children. Typical of respondent’s advertise-
ments, but not necessarily all-inclusive thereof, are the advertisements
attached hereto as Exhibits A through C. Specifically, the aforesaid
advertisements contain the following statements or depictions:

1. “Plus I'll tell you how you can get these monstrous creatures Free with the cost
of your 2-minute, $2.45 call.” (Audio, Complaint Exhibit B)

2. “And, remember, it's $2.45 for a two-minute message!” (Audio, Complaint
Exhibit A)

3. “Call us at 1-900-909-1122, we'll tell you how to get these super gifts...We'll
also tell you how to get an action figure or this colorful poster.” (Audio, Complaint
Exhibit C)

PaR. 5. Through the use of the statements and depictions contained
in the attached advertisements, and in others not specifically set forth
herein, respondent has represented, directly or by implication, that:

1. The total cost for hearing one complete information service
recorded message is two dollars and forty-five cents ($2.45);

2. Children who complete a call to respondent’s information service
will readily and easily obtain the premium(s) specified in the
advertisement;

3. Callers will receive the premium(s) specified in the advertisement
by making a single call to respondent’s information service.

PAR. 6. In truth and in fact:

1. In many cases the total cost for hearing one complete information
service recorded message exceeds two dollars and forty-five cents
($2.45). Respondent charges $2 for the first minute and § .45 for each
additional minute for its recorded message. Because respondent’s
entire message announcement often exceeds two minutes in duration
and the point at which the caller enters the message does not coincide
with the beginning of the story, consumers who iisten to the entire
recorded message will be charged a minimum amount of $2.90 for
each call.

2. Children who complete a call to respondent’s information service
will not readily and easily obtain the premium(s) specified in the
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advertisement because the child must: (1) complete one or more calls
to the information service; (2) record an address, given during the
course of the recorded message announcement, to which a request
must be sent to obtain the item; (3) obtain a copy of the telephone bill
which contains the call(s) to the information service; (4) circle the
appropriate call(s) on the bill; (5) write his or her name, address, and
age on the bill or elsewhere as specified in the recorded message; and
(6) send a copy of the bill to the respondent at the proper address. This
ordering information is given in a rapid and difficult to follow manner
during the course of the recorded message.

3. In many cases callers will not receive the premium(s) specified in
the advertisement by making a single call to respondent’s information
service.

Therefore, the representations set forth in paragraph five were, and
are, false and misleading.

PAR. 7. In its advertising for its information services for children,
respondent has represented, directly or by implication, that children
could easily obtain a premium by making a call to the information
service. These advertisements failed to disclose that there are material
terms and conditions for obtaining the premium, including but not
limited to, the need for a writing implement to transcribe the ordering
information. These terms and conditions would be material to the
caller in deciding whether to purchase the service. In addition,
although the terms and conditions were included in the recorded
message, the message did not provide sufficient notice or time for the
caller to obtain a writing implement and transcribe the necessary
information. These practices were, and are, deceptive practices.

PAr. 8. In the course of advertising, promoting, and selling its
information services for children, respondent has induced children to
call its story service and thereby incur charges, without providing any
reasonable means for persons responsible for payment of these
charges to exercise control over the transaction. This practice has
caused such persons to pay these charges. The admonition in
respondent’s advertisements that children should seek parental
permission before calling did not provide reasonable means for
persons responsible for payment of these charges to exercise control
over the transaction. Respondent’s conduct as set forth above has
caused substantial injury to consumers that is not outweighed by any
countervailing benefits to consumers or competition and is not
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reasonably avoidable by consumers. This conduct was, and is, an
unfair act or practice.

PAR. 9. The acts and practices of the respondent as alleged in this
complaint constitute unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or
affecting commerce in violation of Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade
Commission Act.

Commissioner Yao not participating.
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EXHIBIT A
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EXHIBIT B

“FRECDY PUMPKIN"
Teleline, Inc.

AUDIO VIDEO

Boo! It's Freddy Pumpkin.

You can find out how to get

this monstrous creature when

you call me at 1-900~509-5678. Children ask your parents if
it’s okay before you call.

I'll tell you a horrifying 1-900-909-5678

tale. A different scary story

every day. Plus I'll tell you 1-900-909-5678

how you can get these Free with 1 call. Free with 3
calls.

monstrous creatures FREE with

the cost of your 2 minute, 1-900-909-5678

§2.45 call. So ask you $2.45 for a 2 minute message.
: $2.00 for the first minute.

parents if it’'s OK before you .45 for additional minute,

call 1-900-909-5678. Not

Copyright 1988. all rights
reserved. You‘re Operated by
Teleline, B.A., C.A. Charges
billed by AT&T as agreed for
Teleline.

scared, are you?
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EXHIBIT C

"HE-MAN MASTERS OF
Teleline,

Audio

I am He-Man. Call us at 1-900-
909-1122, we'll tell you how
to get these super gifts plus-
we’ll journey the distant
worlds, explore the Universe
and probably battle Skeletor
aleng the way, Uh! I don’t
know , there's ; new
adventure everyday. We'll
also tell you how to get an
action figure or this colorful
poster. Each message costs
$2.00.for the first minute and
.45 for each additional
minute. Get your parents

permission and call 1-900-909-

1122. I have the power.

Complainet
gxhibiz ¢
Ad Transcr

igpt

THE UNIVERSE"”
Inc.

(visual shows a series of
super hero action figures)
1-900-909-1122

Children be sure to get your
parents permission before
calling.

1-900-909-1122

1-900-909-1122

(visual shows an action
figure)

Action figures may vary from
the ones shown.

(visual shows a poster)
1-900-909-1122

$2.00 for the first minute,
.45 each additional minute.
1-900-909-1122
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DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation of
certain acts and practices of the respondent named in the caption
hereof, and the respondent having been furnished thereafter with a
copy of a draft of complaint which the Bureau of Consumer Protection
proposed to present to the Commission for its consideration and
which, if issued by the Commission, would charge respondent with
violation of the Federal Trade Commission Act; and

The respondent, its attorney, and counsel for the Commission
having thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order,
an admission by respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in
the aforesaid draft of complaint, a statement that the signing of said
agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not constitute an
admission by respondent that the law has been violated as alleged in
such complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission’s Rules.

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having determined that it had reason to believe that the respondent
has violated the said Act, and that complaint should issue stating its
charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the executed
consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public record
for a period of sixty (60) days, now in further conformity with the
procedure preseribed in Section 2.34 of its Rules, the Commission
hereby issues its complaint, makes the following jurisdictional
findings and enters the following order: :

1. Respondent Teleline, Inc. is a corporation organized, existing and
doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
California, with its office and principal place of business located at
9777 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 918, in the City of Beverly Hills, State
of California;

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondent, and the proceeding is
in the public interest.

ORDER

DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this order, the term “children” or ‘“‘child” shall
mean a person of age twelve or under.
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For purposes of this order, the term ‘““‘information service for
children” shall mean a telephone message aceessed through a
numbered exchange (e.g.,*“900”) for which a fee is charged, consisting
of recorded statements promoted or sold primarily to children in any
of the following ways: (a) in advertisements appearing in publications
primarily directed to children including, but not limited to, children’s
magazines and comie books; (b) in advertisements during or adjacent
to television or radio programs primarily directed to children includ-
ing, but not limited to, children’s animated programs, children’s game
shows, and children’s after-school specials; (¢) in advertisements
appearing on product packaging primarily directed to children
including, but not limited to, children’s cereals, toys and beverages; or
(d) in any advertisement, regardless of when or where it appears, that
is primarily directed to children in light of its subject matter, visual
content, language, characters, tone, message, or the like.

For purposes of this order, the term “premium’ shall mean any
item respondent offers to send to those who call its information
service for children.

For purposes of this order, the term “information service message”
shall mean any live or recorded story, program or other communica-
tion transmitted to callers of respondent’s information service for
children.

For purposes of this order, the term “video advertisement” shall
mean any advertisement intended for dissemination on television
broadcast, cablecast, home video, or theatrical release.

This order shall not apply to respondent’s service bureau functions
with regard to information service messages for children that are
limited to either or both of the following:

(1) Distribution or dissemination of any information service for
children; or

(2) Creation or production of the non-promotional story content of
such information service messages.

L

It 1s ordered, That respondent Teleline, Inec., a corporation, its
successors and assigns, and its officers, agents, representatives, and
employees, directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division or
other device, in connection with the advertising, promotion, offering
for sale, sale or transmission of any information service for children in
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or affecting commerce, as “commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade
Commission Act, do forthwith cease and desist from misrepresenting,
directly or by implication:

A. The total cost for hearing one complete information service
message;

B. The number of calls required to receive a premium; and

C. The ease with which a premium is obtainable.

IL.

It is further ordered, That respondent Teleline, Inc., its successors
and assigns, and its officers, agents, representatives and employees,
directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division or other
device, in connection with the advertising, promotion, offering for
sale, sale or transmission of any information service for children in or
affecting commerce, as ‘“‘commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade
Commission Act, do forthwith cease and desist from failing to
disclose, clearly and prominently, whenever an offer of any premium
is made, all the material terms, conditions and obligations upon which
receipt and retention of the premium is contingent. Such terms,
conditions, and obligations shall include, but not be limited to, the
number of calls necessary to receive the premium, if more than one,
and the need to have a writing implement and paper available to
record the necessary information given during the information service
message.

The disclosure shall be made in the manner understandable to
children, and shall be made in the same medium in which the offer of
the premium is made and, in addition, in any information service
message. The material terms, conditions and obligations to be
disclosed in media other than the information service message shall
include the number of calls necessary to receive the premium, if
greater than one, and the need to have a writing implement and paper
available to record the necessary information, and any other informa-
tion material to (1) the decision to attempt to obtain the premium, or
(2) the ability to take advantage of the premium offer by calling the
information service. The name and address to which the premium
request must be sent need not be disclosed in any medium other than
the information service message.

In a video advertisement, the premium disclosure shall be displayed
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as a legible superscript with a simultaneous voice-over recitation of
the disclosure in a manner designed to ensure clarity and prominence.

In a print advertisement, the premium disclosure shall be printed in
a typeface and color that are clear and prominent. In multipage
documents, the premium disclosure shall appear on the cover or first
page.

In a radio advertisement, the premium disclosure shall be included
in a manner designed to ensure clarity and prominence.

In an information service message, the premium disclosure shall be
included in a manner designed to ensure clarity and prominence with
sufficient time for the child to record all information needed to obtain
the premium upon the first hearing of the message, including, but not
limited to, the address where a request must be sent.

II1.

It s further ordered, That respondent do forthwith cease and desist
from disseminating or causing to be disseminated any advertisement
in any medium for an information service for children that does not
include the following statement:

“KIDS, YOU MUST ASK YOUR MOM OR DAD AND GET THEIR PERMISSION BEFORE YOU CALL.
THIS CALL COSTS MONEY.”

The above-required disclosure shall be presented in a manner designed
to ensure clarity and prominence, as follows:

A. In any video advertisement, the disclosure shall be presented
simultaneously in both the audio and video portions of the advertise-
ment. The disclosure shall appear immediately following the first
video presentation of the “900" telephone number, but in any event
shall begin within the first fifteen (15) seconds of the advertisement.
The audio portion shall be presented in a slow and deliberate manner.
Each line of the video portion shall be at least as large as one-half of
the size of the largest presentation of the “900” number that appears
on the screen during the advertisement, shall be of a color or shade
that readily contrasts with the background, and shall appear on the
screen for the duration of the audio disclosure.

B. In any print advertisement, the disclosure shall be parallel with
the base of the advertisement and shall be placed in close proximity to
the 900 number. All lines of the disclosure when taken together shall
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be at least as large as one-half the size of the largest presentation of
the 900 number, but in any event the type size of each line of the
disclosure shall be no less than 12 point, bold-face type.

C. In any radio advertisement, the disclosure shall be presented in a
slow and deliberate manner and shall appear immediately following
the first presentation of the “900” telephone number, but in any event
it shall begin within the first fifteen (15) seconds of the advertise-
ment.

Nothing contrary to, inconsistent with, or in mitigation of the
above-required statement shall be used in any advertisement in any
medium.

Iv.

It 1s further ordered, That respondent do forthwith cease and desist
from disseminating or causing to be disseminated any advertisement
in any medium for any information service for children that does not
include a disclosure of the cost of a call to the information service.
This disclosure shall be presented in a manner designed to ensure
clarity and prominence. In any video advertisement, the disclosure
shall be presented simultaneously in both the audio and video portions
of the advertisement.

V.

It is further ordered, That respondent do forthwith cease and desist
from disseminating or causing to be disseminated any information
service message for children that does not include, at the beginning of
the message, an introductory preamble that states in a slow,
deliberate and clear manner the following:

““THIS TELEPHONE CALL COSTS MONEY. IF YOU DO NOT HAVE YOUR MOM OR DAD’S
PERMISSION, HANG UP NOW AND THERE WILL BE NO CHARGE FOR THIS CALL.”

VL

It is further ordered, That respondent do forthwith cease and desist
from billing or causing to be billed, or collecting any funds or causing
any funds to be collected, for any call to any information service for
children terminated within no less than five (5) seconds of the end of
the introductory preamble, as required by paragraph V of this order.
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VIL

It is further ordered, That respondent do forthwith cease and desist
from inducing children to call its information service for children and
thereby incur charges, without providing any reasonable means for
the person responsible for payment of such charges to exercise control
over the transaction. For purposes of this paragraph, if the respondent
does not provide, prior to placement of any call by a child, a
reasonable means for the person responsible for payment to avoid
unauthorized calls, the provision of a reasonable means to exercise
control over the transaction shall be the use of the respondent’s best
efforts to ensure that one-time refunds or credits are provided upon
request for unauthorized calls made by children, as specified below.
Best efforts shall include at least the following:

A. Contracting with the appropriate interstate common carrier or
local exchange carrier to:

(1) Identify in all telephone bills containing charges for calls to
respondent’s information service for children each telephone call to
such service by the characters “CHILD CALL;”

(2) Place in all telephone bills containing charges for calis to
respondent’s information service for children, clearly and prominently
in close proximity to the itemization of those charges, a toll-free or
local telephone number specified to be used for consumer inguiries
concerning charges on the telephone bill; provided, that a general
billing inquiry telephone number for customer inquiries concerning
charges on the telephone bill shall satisfy this requirement;

(3) Refer all customers who call the toll-free number inquiring about
the charges for respondent’s information service for children to their
local exchange carrier for information regarding the availability of
blocking in their jurisdiction; and

(4) Provide a one-time prompt and full credit or refund at the
customer’s request for all such calls, whether such request is made to
the toll-free or local telephone number specified herein or in any other
manner; provided, that respondent must contract with the carrier to
provide a second prompt and full credit or refund to any customer who
requests the first credit or refund during a period of the billing eycle
where unauthorized calls have been made, but do not yet appear on
the customer’s bill, and subsequently requests a second credit or
refund for any additional unauthorized calls made before the date of
the first request for a credit or refund;
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provided, that if the interstate common carrier utilized by respondent
employs local exchange carriers to provide billing inquiry services,
respondent shall be in compliance with subparagraphs A(3) and (4) of
this paragraph if its contract with the interstate common carrier
provides that the interstate common carrier notify each local exchange
carrier of the interstate common carrier’s policies to:

(i) Provide the customer with information regarding the availability
of blocking of 900 number ecalls; and

(ii) Provide upon request one-time refunds or credits for unautho-
rized calls by children, as provided in subparagraph A(4) of this
paragraph.

B. In the event that respondent receives any information that the
interstate common carrier has failed to fulfill its obligations under the
contract required by subparagraph A of this paragraph, immediately
notifying the interstate common carrier:

(1) Of the existence of the alleged failure(s);

(2) Of the interstate common carrier’s responsibility to fulfill its
obligations under the contract;

(8) Of the need to investigate and correct all past failures; and

(4) That if a pattern or practice of failures continues, respondent
will terminate the use of said interstate common carrier for any
information service for children; and

C. Terminating the use of said interstate common ecarrier for any
information service for children, in the event that the interstate
common carrier does not correct all past failures of which it is aware
or continues to fail to fulfill its obligations under said contract.

D. Compliance with the requirements set forth in subparagraphs A -
C of this paragraph is deemed to be satisfactory compliance with this
paragraph.

Provided, that for purposes of this paragraph, the mere inclusion of
any audio or video disclosure relating to parental authorization in
advertisements or information service messages is expressly deemed
not to be a reasonable means, prior to placement of any call by a child,
for the person responsible for payment to avoid unauthorized calls.

VIIIL

It 1s further ordered, That for three (3) years from the date of
service of this order, respondent shall maintain and upon request
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make available to the Federal Trade Commission for inspection and
copying: (1) all advertisements for information services for children
and all corresponding information service messages; (2) a record of all
credit or refund requests made for charges billed for respondent’s
information services for children; (8) all documents relating to
compliance with paragraph VII of this order; and (4) all consumer
complaints and dispositions thereof relating to respondent’s informa-
tion services for children.

IX.

1t is further ordered, That respondent shall notify the Commission
at least thirty (80) days prior to any proposed change in the
corporation such as dissolution, assignment or sale resulting in the
emergence of a successor corporation or corporations, the creation or
dissolution of subsidiaries or any other change in the corporation
which may affect compliance obligations arising out of this order.

X.

It is further ordered, That respondent shall forthwith distribute a
copy of this order to each of its operating divisions and any carrier(s)
or other entities providing billing and/or collection service for its
information services for children.

XL

1t is further ordered, That respondent shall, within sixty (60) days
after service of this order and at such other times as the Commission
may require, file with the Commission a report, in writing, setting
forth in detail the manner and form in which it has complied with this
order.

Commissioner Yao not participating.
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IN THE MATTER OF
AUDIO COMMUNICATIONS INCORPORATED

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SEC. 5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3338. Complaint, July 24, 1991—Decision, July 24, 1991

This consent order prohibits, among other things, a Nevada corporation, that markets
“900” number information services to children, from making misrepresentations
regarding free gifts or the number of calls required to receive a premium,; requires
a clear statement, or preamble, at the beginning of each children’s message
giving the child a chance to hang up without charge; and requires the company to
provide a means for parents to prevent, or not be charged for, unauthorized calls
by their children.

Appearances

For the Commission: Toby M. Levin and Joel Winston.

For the respondent: James M. Johnstone, Wiley, Rein & Fielding,
Washington, D.C.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that Audio
Communications Incorporated, a corporation, has violated the provi-
sions of the Federal Trade Commission Act, and it appearing to the
Commission that a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the
public interest, alleges:

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent Audio Communications Incorporated is a
Nevada corporation with its office and principal place of business
located at 3140 Polaris Avenue, Suite 27, Las Vegas, Nevada.

PAR. 2. Respondent has advertised, offered for sale and has sold
information services to consumers, including children. Accessed by the
telephone through a “900” number exchange, respondent’s informa-
tion services for children have consisted of recorded stories or games
featuring animated or fictional characters (such as Santa Claus and
the Easter Bunny) along with recorded promotional messages.
Advertisements designed to induce consumers to purchase these
services have been broadcast on television across state lines.
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PAR. 3. As alleged in this complaint, the acts and practices of the
respondent have been in or affecting commerce, as “commerce” is
defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

PaAR. 4. Respondent has disseminated, or has caused to be
disseminated, advertisements and telephone messages for various
information services for children. Typical of respondent’s advertise-
ments, but not necessarily all-inclusive thereof, are the advertisements
attached hereto as Exhibits A and B. Specifically, the aforesaid
advertisements contain the following statements or depictions:

1. “Call me now to get a free Easter Bunny gift, and help my favorite charity.”
(Audio, Complaint Exhibit A)

2. “There’s a new story everyday, and I'll tell you how to get a free Christmas gift.”
(Audio, Complaint Exhibit B)

PaR. 5. Through the use of the statements and depictions contained
in the attached advertisements, and in others not specifically set forth
herein, respondent has represented, directly or by implication, that:

1. Children who complete a call to respondent’s information service
will readily and easily obtain the premium specified in the advertise-
ment; and

2. Callers will receive the premium specified in the advertisement by
making a single call to respondent’s information service.

PaAr. 6. In truth and in fact:

1. Children who complete a call to respondent’s information service
will not readily and easily obtain the premium specified in the
advertisement because the child must: (1) complete one or more calls
to the information service; (2) record an address, given during the
course of the recorded message announcement, to which a request
must be sent to obtain the item; (8) obtain a copy of the telephone bill
which contains the call(s) to the information service; (4) enclose a
stamped self-addressed envelope; and (5) send a copy of the bill to the
respondent at the proper address. This ordering information is given
in a rapid and difficult to follow manner during the course of the
recorded message.

2. In many cases callers will not receive the premium specified in
the advertisement by making a single call to respondent’s information
service. ’

Therefore, the representations set forth in paragraph five were, and
are, false and misleading.
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Par. 7. In its advertising for its information services for children,
respondent has represented, directly or by implication, that children
could easily obtain a premium by making a call to the information
service. These advertisements failed to disclose that there are material
terms and conditions for obtaining the premium, including but not
limited to, the need for a writing implement to transcribe the ordering
information. These terms and conditions would be material to the
caller in deciding whether to purchase the service. In addition,
although the terms and conditions were included in the recorded
message, the message did not provide sufficient notice or time for the
caller to obtain a writing implement and transcribe the necessary
information. These practices were, and are, deceptive practices.

Par. 8. In the course of advertising, promoting, and selling its
information services for children, respondent has induced children to
call its story service and thereby incur charges, without providing any
reasonable means for persons responsible for payment of these
charges to exercise control over the transaction. This practice has
caused such persons to pay these charges. The admonition in
respondent’s advertisements that children should seek parental
permission before calling did not provide reasonable means for
persons responsible for payment of these charges to exercise control
over the transaction. Respondent’s conduct as set forth above has
caused substantial injury to consumers that is not outweighed by any
countervailing benefits to consumers or competition and is not
reasonably avoidable by consumers. This conduct was, and is, an
unfair act or practice.

Par. 9. The acts and practices of the respondent as alleged in this
complaint constitute unfair or decept<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>